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	COMPLAINT
Civil Action No. _________________




Plaintiffs, as for their complaint against Defendants, allege as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1.
Plaintiffs bring this action for declaratory and injunctive relief.  Without this Court’s intervention, voters in ______ County who will be effectively disenfranchised because of Defendants’ failure to comply with the bilingual provisions of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a.  Plaintiffs seek an order which, inter alia, compels Defendants to produce accurate Spanish (or other language) translations of election related materials and to provide bilingual poll workers in ___________________________________________________, and thus to comply with the rights and duties provided by Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act.  
JURISDICTION AND VENUE


2.
This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, as a case arising under the laws of the United States; under 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(4), as a case seeking equitable and other relief pursuant to an Act of Congress providing for the protection of the right to vote; and under 42 U.S.C. § 1973j(d) and (f) to enforce provisions of the Voting Rights Act.  

3.
Jurisdiction and venue in this Court are proper, as the events complained of have occurred in ______ County. 
PARTIES


4.
Plaintiff ______________________ is a political campaign operating in ___________ where a federal election is being held on November 4, 2008 throughout the State.   

5.
Plaintiffs ____________________________________________________

are registered, eligible voters in _________ County and are ____________________.  

6.
Plaintiffs ____________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ are community organizations.  Organizational Plaintiffs have standing to bring suit on behalf of any of their members who would otherwise have standing to sue in their own right, because the interests at stake are germane to the organizations’ purposes, and neither the claim asserted nor the relief requested requires the participation of its members in the lawsuit.  Friends of the Earth, Inc. v. Laidlaw Environmental Services (TOC), Inc., 528 U.S. 167, 120 S.Ct. 693, 711, 145 L.Ed.2d 610 (2000)).  

7.
Defendant ___________________________ is a political subdivision of the State of ________.  

8.
Defendant Board of Elections (or name local office or official here who conducts elections in the County) has authority to conduct elections in ____ County.   (Note: It may be necessary to add other local officials here as well, if such officials within a jurisdiction have any power, duty or responsibility regarding the conduct of elections).  
ALLEGATIONS


9. 
According to the 2000 census, the ____had a total population of ____, of whom ___ were _______(insert appropriate groups here--Hispanic/Asian American/Native American). The Census reported that ____ County had a total voting age population of ___, of whom ___% were _____(insert appropriate group here-- Hispanic/Asian American/Native American).  

10.
The Director of the Census designated the County of ___ as subject to the requirements of Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act for Spanish (or insert other language here).  See 42 U.S. § 1973aa-1a(b)(2); see also 67 Fed. Reg. 48,871 (July 26, 2002).  (Note: if there is a political unit within the County that is the defendant, then add this language: “As a political unit within ___ County, _____ is also subject to the requirements of Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act for Spanish (or insert other language here).  See 28 C.F.R. § 55.9.”).  The Census coverage determination is final and non-reviewable.  See 42 U.S.C. §1973aa-1a(b)(4). 


11.
Because ____ County is subject  to the requirements of Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act, “any registration or voting notice, forms, instructions, assistance, or other materials or information relating to the electoral process, including ballots” that Defendants provide in English must also be furnished in Spanish (or insert other language here).  42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a(c).  

CAUSE OF ACTION

12.
Plaintiffs allege and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 11, above.  


13.
Defendants have failed to provide complete and accurate Spanish (or substitute other language) translations of all election-related materials that the County has produced in English, and to provide bilingual poll workers.  (Here, add any additional facts that you have verified which provide details of election-related materials that Defendants have not produced in the appropriate minority language.)
14.
Defendants’ failure to provide accurate Spanish (or substitute other language here) language election information constitutes a violation of Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act.  42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a.

15.
Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants will continue to violate Section 203 by failing to provide limited-English proficient citizens of ______ with accurate and reliable ____language election information necessary for their equal and effective political participation. 
PRAYER FOR RELIEF


WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs respectfully pray that this Court enter an order:


1. 
Declaring that Defendants have failed to provide accurate Spanish (or substitute other language here) language election information necessary to those who require it in violation of Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a;

2.
Ordering Defendants to adopt and implement a procedure to ensure that limited-English proficient Spanish (or other language) speaking citizens in ________ County are able to participate in all aspects of the electoral process as required by Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a, by producing accurate Spanish (or other language) translations of election related materials and by providing bilingual poll workers in ______________________;  

3.
Requiring Defendants to publicize in the local media the adopted procedure in _________ County that will ensure that limited-English proficient Spanish (or other language) speaking citizens are able to participate in all aspects of the electoral process as required by Section 203 of the Voting Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1973aa-1a; 
4.
Awarding Plaintiffs all attorneys’ fees, together with the costs and disbursements associated with the filing and maintenance of this action; and 

5.
Awarding such other and further relief as may be just and proper.
	Date:  _______
	Respectfully submitted,
_____________________________________

_______________________________
_______________________________
 _______________________________
 _______________________________


